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OSSETT TEXTILE WALK
Ossett
The growth of the wool textile industry in the 19th century transformed Ossett from a straggling village into a 
town as its population rose from under 4,000 to over 10,000. At �rst the local textile trade was dominated by the 
manufacture of woollen cloth, but in the second half of the century the town was better known as a centre of for 
the recycling of woollen goods, a process which involved grading and then grinding them into shoddy or 
mungo. Blended with new wool, shoddy and mungo were then spun and woven into new fabrics. The rise of 
synthetic �bres led to the decline of the reclaimed wool trade, although some textile recycling is still carried on 
in Ossett. Although many of the buildings associated with the textile industry have now gone, the town still has 
loomshops where cloth was woven by hand together with mills and warehouses. 

� Start your walk from the steps at the west front of Holy Trinity Church.
 
1. Holy Trinity Church
Consecrated in 1865 by the Bishop of Ripon, Holy Trinity Church replaced an early 19th century building in the 
Market Place which had been built for the Reverend Edward Kilvington. The architect, William Henry Crossland, 
designed it in the fashionable Gothic style. Much of its cost was met by Benjamin Ingham junior, a prosperous 
merchant based in Palermo whose family came from Ossett.

2. Graves of William Gartside and Abraham Pollard
On the north side of the churchyard gate are the graves of William Gartside and Abraham Pollard. Gartside was a 
wealthy businessman who, when he died in 1876, owned a large amount of property in Ossett including Dews-
bury Lane Colliery, the Calder Vale Dyeworks and Spring Mill. Pollard, who died in 1900, was head of the �rm of 
John Speight and Sons of North�eld Mill, shoddy and mungo manufacturers. His obituary in the local newspa-
per described him as ‘one of the most active, jovial and prominent men in Ossett’. He was a staunch Conservative 
and a churchman who was a warm supporter of the town’s Anglican day and Sunday schools.  

� Leave the churchyard and turn left into Church Street, which was known as Field 
Lane until Holy Trinity was erected.   

3. North�eld Mill
This mill was built in 1888 for Abraham Pollard. His company was one of the oldest involved in the mungo trade 
and Pollard, who had started his career as an ordinary worker, was the son-in-law of its founder, John Speight. 
The building replaced one destroyed by a �re and it was used as a warehouse while the �rm’s rag machines were 
housed in sheds in the mill yard.  
 
4. Holy Trinity School
This school, which was opened in 1875, was an Anglican response to the 1870 Education Act. This measure 
enabled communities with too few school places to elect School Boards to provide non-denominational schools 
funded from the rates. Ossett’s vicar at the time, the Reverend Thomas Lee, was an opponent of School Boards 
because he believed the non-denominational principle was ‘practically atheism.’ Michael Sheard and Walter 
Hanstock of Batley were the designers of the original building which was enlarged in the 1890s to the plans of 
the Ossett architect William Arthur Kendall.    

� At the end of Church Street, look left.

5. United Methodist Free Church 
This former church was built in 1893 in a modi�ed Queen Anne style to the designs of Reuben Castle of Cleckhe-
aton and replaced an earlier chapel on the site. 

� Turn right into Dale Street and at the Co-operative Stores cross the road to reach the steps in front of 
the Town Hall.



6. The Town Hall
Ossett became a municipal borough in 1890 and the �rst mayor was Edward Clay, a mungo and shoddy manu-
facturer. It was not until 1908 that the Town Hall was opened because of disagreements over its site and cost. 
Arthur Walter Hanstock, son of one of the architects of Holy Trinity School, won the competition to design the 
building. On the central gable of the façade is the borough’s badge. The �eece, the mills, the colliery and the 
wheat sheaf re�ected di�erent aspects of the town’s economy. The Town Hall clock was donated by Louisa and 
Ann Ward, daughters of Joseph Ward of Bottom�eld Mill. Ward, who died in 1905, built up a large and successful 
business as a mungo manufacturer and was Ossett’s mayor in 1897. 

 � From the Town Hall steps go to the HSBC bank, turn into Wesley Street and cross Ventnor Way to the 
King’s Way Church.
    
7. The Peace Plaque
The plaque in the boundary wall of the King’s Way Church commemorates  the short lived peace which followed 
the French Emperor Napoleon’s abdication in 1814. Originally it was placed over the entrance to the now demol-
ished day and Sunday school building opened in that year by Ossett’s Anglican minister, the Reverend Edward 
Kilvington. Under his direction the schools quickly earned a high reputation. 

8. The King’s Way Church
This is the fourth place of worship on the site, the �rst having been built for the Methodists in the 1790s. Among 
those who worshipped here were William Gartside and Edward Clay. Unlike Gartside, Clay took an active part in 
the life of the chapel, and held all the positions open to a Wesleyan Methodist layman.   

� Turn right into Wesley Street which is named after the founder of Methodism, John Wesley.

9. Wesley Mill
The �rm founded by Edward Clay in 1870 is one of the few local businesses still involved in textile recycling and 
makes �ock and felt mainly for the bedding industry. The older parts of its premises belonged to William 
Gartside and were originally used in cloth manufacturing.

10. Wesley House
Adjoining the mill is Wesley House which was built in 1857 for William Gartside and was later the home of 
Edward Clay.
   
11.  50A – 58 Wesley Street
A house, loomshop and four cottages were built in 1853-5 for William Gartside as an investment. Benjamin 
Simpson, a cloth manufacturer, was an early tenant of the house and loomshop. He was living in the house at 
the time of the 1861 census when the tenants in the cottages included two woollen weavers, a woollen slubber 
and a coal miner. Benjamin Simpson was in partnership with his brother, Eli, and the pair carried on a ‘�ourishing 
business’ based mainly at the now demolished West�eld Mill in Wesley Street. After 1870 the house was occu-
pied by a rag dealer and mungo manufacturers and the loomshop was used for the storage of rags. The loom-
shop is now a private residence.   

� Return to Ventnor Way and turn right.

12. Dearden Gallery
This combined dwelling and warehouse was built in 1864-1865 for Isaiah Ward, a rag dealer. Ward lived in the 
house, while the warehouse was used for rag storage and grading. His business prospered and in 1884 he built 
another warehouse in Illingworth Street which still survives. Ward was a Congregationalist and played a part in 
the running of his church as a senior deacon at the Green Congregational Church.  

� Walk along Queen Street and the Green.

13. Zion Primitive Methodist Chapel
The chapel was built in 1863 on the site of the loomshop where the Primitive Methodists had previously met. 



14. Particular Baptist Chapel
The original chapel on the site was built in 1872 at the expense of David Ellis, a cloth manufacturer.   

15. Green Mount
Green Mount was built for the Pickards on the site of a cottage where the family had lived for several 
generations. Their wealth came from cloth manufacturing and they ran Manor Mill in Ossett and a mill at 
Horbury Bridge. The house was sold in 1892 following the death of George Pickard who died from tuberculosis 
aged 21.       

� Turn right into Healey Road

16. Healey Road
The former rag warehouse, now occupied by the St John Ambulance Service, was built in 1879 for John William 
Smith and Eli Townend. The business partners lived in the two houses behind the warehouse, Townend in Calder 
Villa and Smith in Grange View. Later the two men established separate businesses and Smith bought Healey 
Old Mill and Townend purchased Healey Low Mill. When he died in 1910 Townend was described ‘as a man of 
remarkable personality’ whose popularity was founded on his straightforwardness and his generosity. Unlike 
most of his Ossett contemporaries he did not belong to any religious denomination: his creed, he said, was wide 
enough to embrace the whole world.   

17. Healey 
From the end of the 18th century Healey developed as an industrial hamlet on the north bank of the River 
Calder. The �rst mill on the site was Healey Old Mill which was opened in 1786. It was an early example of a 
company mill, a mill owned by a co-operative. Healey Low and New Mills were built in the 1820s. John Gartside 
established a dyeworks at Healey which was later carried on by his sons Joseph and William. From the 1850s 
there was also a gas works owned at �rst by a company and later by Ossett Corporation.

Healey was also the scene of important transport developments. In the 18th century the Calder and Hebble 
Navigation was built along the valley and it was joined in the 1840s by a railway connecting Leeds and 
Manchester. Just over a century later the construction of the Healey marshalling yard led to the diversion of the 
River Calder. 

� To reach Healey New Mill walkers should ignore the footbridge across the Calder and take the lane to 
its left which passes underneath the railway to reach the mill 

18. Healey New Mill 
Healey Old and Low Mills have been demolished together with William Gartside’s Calder Vale Dyeworks, but 
Healey New Mill survives. It was erected in 1826-1827 as a steam-powered scribbling and fulling mill for 
Benjamin Hallas, an Ossett clothier, whose father had built Pildacre Mill. Financial di�culties forced him to sell it 
in 1836 to a partnership of local clothiers who ran it as a company mill. The decline of woollen manufacturing in 
the town led to the mill being sold in 1881 to David Giggal, a renowned wool maker. Giggal later went into 
partnership with his brother-in-law, Edward Clay, and the mill was mainly used for the manufacture of shoddy 
and mungo.

� To return to the town centre either retrace your steps or take the footpath from Kerry Foods to 
Runtlings Lane and then follow West Wells Road to Queen Street.

The West Yorkshire Textile project would like to thank David Scriven from the Osset History society for creating
this walk for the project.
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